Senate Library Committee (SLC)
March 17, 2020
Minutes of the Meeting

These minutes reflect discussion and debate at a meeting of a committee of the University of Minnesota
Senate; none of the comments, conclusions or actions reported in these minutes reflect the views of, nor
are they binding on, the senate, the administration or the Board of Regents.

[In these minutes: Welcome and Introductions; COVID-19 Library Services Planning]

PRESENT: Gautam Ray (chair), John Butler, LeAnn Dean, Andrew Gallia, Ryan Greenwood,
Kristin Janke, Anup Josi, Nita Krevens, Siane Luzzi, Beth Magistad, Anna Milone, Joanne
Richardson, Matthew Rosendahl, Zach Roushdy, Marlo Welshons, Keri Youngstrand, Sandra
Zhou.

ABSENT: David Brown, Michael Hannon, Karen Monson, Mary Beth Sandcomb-Moran,
Rhiannon Williams.

GUESTS: Lisa German, University librarian and dean, University of Minnesota Libraries

1. Introductions

Chair Gautam Ray called the meeting to order and asked for a round of introductions. He then
welcomed Lisa German, University librarian and dean, University of Minnesota Libraries,
attending her first meeting with the Senate Library Committee (SLC) since joining the
University on February 28, 2020.

German thanked members for welcoming her and said that her first few weeks at the University
had definitely been interesting. She said the Libraries staff are poised to help faculty and students
make necessary changes to alternative learning environments. She reiterated information from
President Gabel’s March 16, 2020, letter stating that all University libraries would be closed as
of March 17, 2020, at which time library staff would be working remotely and available online.

German shared that the Libraries have put together documents for faculty, staff, graduate and
undergraduate students, which outline changes and updates to library services in the face of
COVID-19. She said this information is accessible from the Libraries’ website homepage as well
as the website for the Office of the Executive Vice President and Provost. German outlined
updates to library services:

o The Libraries are currently unable to provide access, delivery, or lending of any books or
physical materials.

e The Libraries staff has access to literally millions of online books, DVDs, videos,
journals, articles, course guides, etc., and can assist faculty, students, and staff in
accessing those materials.

e Due dates are extended for all items and there will be no overdue fines.

e (Copyright information is available here, specifically addressing transitioning class
materials to online.



https://www.lib.umn.edu/about/essential
https://www.lib.umn.edu/about/essential/grads
https://www.lib.umn.edu/about/essential/undergrads
https://provost.umn.edu/
https://www.lib.umn.edu/copyright/rapidly-shifting-a-course-online

e Research and learning consultations are available online.

e Library staff are available to meet with instructors and classes via Zoom or Google
Hangouts.

e There is a Request for Purchase link in the essential services document for faculty to
request items they would like purchased for instructional use.

German finished by saying that the staff are all available to help, virtually, making sure to
support the teaching and research needs of students, faculty and staff. She then asked if there
were questions from committee members.

Nita Krevans asked if course material that is in physical book format can be distributed to
students via a Kindle version. German noted that it will depend on the publisher and the
accessibility rights that the University has negotiated with that publisher. She added that the
Libraries’ staff will be focusing on recommending multi-user electronic texts so that more than
one person at a time can access the material. Krevans asked: With material I own personally and
intend to use in class, can screenshots of small excerpts be taken and distributed to students in
the class.” German said that yes, screenshots of small excerpts are permissible. John Butler
added that should an instructor have questions about thresholds with regard to copyright and fair
use, Nancy Sims, copyright program librarian, University of Minnesota Libraries, is available for
consultation on such matters.

Ray then asked if the Libraries had resources to help faculty create, for example, a 15-minute
class video that could be posted on Canvas. Butler answered that the Libraries have been
increasing the number of One-Button Studios within library facilities for just such a purpose, but
unfortunately, the studios are not accessible now because of building closures.

Butler suggested the following alternative resources:

e Support for working with technology sessions are being held daily online by the
University’s Academic Technology Support Services.

e A University of Minnesota website called Keep Teaching is running technology sessions
throughout the day as long as there is a need. There will be assistance for those units that
do not have instructional design support within the unit. The site is positioned to assist
faculty with technology, pedagogy, resources, etc.

Kristen Janke added that the Center for Educational Innovation is providing consultation sessions
to which faculty can drop in and ask questions about their particular online learning needs.

German invited Butler to share information from the Office of Information Technology (OIT)
planning meetings of which he has been a part. Butler said:
e (Great attention is being focused on the health of the information technology infrastructure
of the University.
e OIT is closely monitoring the demands on Canvas and Kaltura for time-based media
uploading and playback.
e The University’s Virtual Private Network (VPN), which allows the University to create
secure connections to other networks over the Internet, is running at peak levels, with


https://docs.google.com/a/umn.edu/forms/d/e/1FAIpQLScBdqhb16ISFeJxIFCoiyhZMjlP_31PkU8XNeDW9QXf1GZPJQ/viewform
https://it.umn.edu/academic-technology-support-services
https://keep-teaching.umn.edu/
https://cei.umn.edu/

much of the University workforce working from home. In reviewing anticipated
increased demand on University IT infrastructure, Butler noted that there is concern
about the overall capacity of the VPN. He added that remote access to numerous
University systems and applications does not require using the VPN, though individuals
might assume otherwise. For example, the vast majority of licensed library electronic
journals and databases can be accessed without using the VPN. Using the links to these
resources on the Libraries' website will send the user through a robust proxy system,
simply prompting for a U of M ID and password for session access. More information is
available here: How do I access library research databases from off-campus?

e A follow-up question was posed: "If I'm not using the VPN, how can I access licensed
electronic journals and articles that I find through Google Scholar?" Butler said that there
is a Google Scholar Settings option that allows the user to designate up to five libraries
for streamlined access to licensed library resources. In Scholar, go to Settings, then
Library Links. Search "Minnesota," check "University of Minnesota Twin Cities FindIt@
U of M Twin Cities" and then Save. This is a one-time set-up for searching Scholar
(unless the browser is changed; then the process must be repeated).

Ray asked what resources are available for conducting exams online. Krevans shared that there is
a Facebook group called Pandemic Pedagogy and referred to a post suggesting that the whole
idea of testing may need to be reconsidered during this time. The writer of the post, Krevans
explained, said that students are in great distress at this time, and finding a 90-minute segment of
time to take a test, when they are at home where many other family members may be, might not
be possible.

Anna Milone added that her department is familiar with teaching online, and shared a best
practices document with committee members. German underscored the importance of sharing
best practices among colleagues, since everyone will be learning what does and doesn’t work as
the epidemic unfolds.

German reminded committee members that the University has access to the largest digital library
in the world, the HathiTrust Digital Library, and recommended making use of it. Andrea Gallia
said that many of the items in the Libraries’ physical collection also exist in Google Books, but
wondered if the University community has access to them. German explained that much of the
same material is available via HathiTrust. She added that the Association of Research Libraries
is in discussions with Mike Furlough, the executive director of the HathiTrust, to see what might
be opened up and made available at no cost during this unprecedented time.

Janke then asked German to provide information on the types of communications that would be
coming from the Libraries’ to assist faculty as the need for alternative learning environments
continues. German urged committee members to share with her and the Libraries staff what they
most need, and committee members shared their ideas:

e Milone noted that a list of resources that students may have limited or no access to, now
that they cannot be on campus, would be helpful, so that faculty and staff could avoid


https://www.lib.umn.edu/faq/24393
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1CBfQlx4GSWyJR6L0iTVUisI5ieHH2h1A99NkgHqI9B0/edit?usp=sharing
https://docs.google.com/document/d/1CBfQlx4GSWyJR6L0iTVUisI5ieHH2h1A99NkgHqI9B0/edit?usp=sharing
https://www.hathitrust.org/
https://www.arl.org/

sending students to sites or applications that students cannot currently access from off
campus.

e Butler said that central OIT is gathering a list of applications that do require VPN, and
the list is relatively small compared to the many applications that do not require VPN. He
added that applications that may tie into employee or student data do require an extra
layer of security.

e Milone added that a VPN best practices document would be helpful, as many people
may be unaware of the capacity challenges the system is having now. Butler added that
once a University member signs into VPN, they will now be timed out after 15 minutes,
rather than 12 hours.

e Janke said she appreciates the Libraries’ liaison model and that perhaps the liaisons, in
working with individual units and departments, could share what they have learned about
new resources, new ways of operating, and even success stories as motivation for
colleagues.

German applauded the idea and said that the liaisons and heads of liaison services were meeting
every day, and that she would recommend Janke’s idea to them.

German added that, having navigated the University of Houston Libraries through Hurricane
Harvey in 2017, she is keenly aware of the mental health needs of colleagues navigating an
unprecedented event such as COVID-19. German asked the committee members to reach out to
her as well as the Libraries staff as needs and problems arise. She said not only is the University
of Minnesota Libraries’ staff ready to assist, but that they are connecting with peer universities to
share best practices and resources.

German then asked the committee members to share how they were making use of the services
of the Libraries. Janke noted that she didn’t know of any specific stories yet, as her colleagues
were currently focused on the most pressing tasks of getting curriculum online. But, Janke
added, as people settle into the new online learning environments, she imagines the requests to
the Libraries for assistance will become more specific and more frequent.

As there was no further discussion, Ray adjourned the meeting.

Geanette Poole
University Senate Office



